
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

HUMBLE CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING PACKET 

OCTOBER 23, 2014  



 
Mayor 
Donald M
City Man
Darrell Bo
City Secr
Jason Stu
 

C
 

1. In

2. C
by
o

a.
b
c.
d
e.
f.

3. S
in
 

4. O
H
T
th

5. O
n
re
g
pr

McMannes 
nager 
oeske 
retary 
ebe 

Call to order.

nvocation an

Consent agen
y law.  Item
f the Counci

. Minutes –

. Financial 

. Current In

. Quarterly

. Monthly D
 Correspon

pecial Prese
nitiative and 

Ordinance 14
Handbill Dis
Term; Reapp
hereof and su

Ordinance 14
ew Article V
egulating ga
ame rooms,
rovisions rel

Thu
City Hal

 

nd Pledge of 

nda items wh
ms may be re

il. 

– Regular M
Statement  

nvoices 
y Investment 
Department 
ndence. 

entation by M
Domestic V

4-746 amend
stributors,” A
plication Up
ubstituting th

4-747 amend
V. “Regulat
me rooms a
, setting for
lated to the s

Humbl
Regu

ursday, Octo
ll Council C

Hum

f Allegiance.

hich consist
emoved from

eeting Octob

Report 
Reports 

Mr. Tim Bat
Violence Aw

ding Chapter
Article III, 

pon Change 
herefor a new

ding Chapte
tion of Gam
and amuseme
rth a penalt
subject matte

 
 

 
Agenda 
le City Coun
ular Meetin
ober 23, 201
Chamber, 11
mble, Texas

 

 
 

t of minister
m the consen

 
ber 9, 2014

 
tes regarding

wareness Mon

r 30, “Peddl
“Transient 
In Informa

w section 30
 

er 8, “Amuse
me Rooms an

ent redempti
ty; providing
er.   

 

ncil 
g 

14 6:30 P.M
14 West Hig
s 

rial or “hous
nt agenda an

g the Allstat
nth.   

lers, Solicito
Retail Bus

ation,” by de
0-88; and pro

ements and 
nd Amusem
ion machine
g for severa

Co
All
Ra
Me
An
No

 

M. 
ggins 

sekeeping” i
nd discussed 

te Foundatio

ors, Transien
sinesses,” S
eleting all o
oviding for s

Entertainme
ment Redemp
es; requiring
ability and 

ouncil Memb
lan Steagall 

ay Calfee 
erle Aaron 
ndy Curry 
orman Funder

 

items as req
by majority

on’s Purple P

nt Businesse
ection 88, 
of Section 3
severability.

ent” by add
ption Machi

g city licensi
containing 

bers  

rburk  
 

quired 
y vote 

Purse 

s and 
“Fee; 
30-88 

ding a 
ines;” 
ng of 
other 



6. R
R

7. A
 

Notice is
will be h
West Hig
 
Posted th
 
 
 
 
  
City Secr
 
I, the und
the City 
correct c
and the C
to the ge
5:00 P.M
time of s
 
This pub
following
 
Subscrib
 
 
  
Notary P

 
 
 

Resolution 14
Rooms and A

Adjournment

s hereby give
held on Thur
ggins, Humb

his 20th day o

 
retary 

dersigned, d
of Humble, 
opy of said 
City’s websi
neral public

M. and remai
aid meeting.

blic notice w
g date and ti

ed and swor

 
Public – Harr

THIS FACI
ARE AVAIL
MUST BE M

SECRET

4-739 estab
Amusement R

t 

en that a Re
rsday, Octob
ble, Texas.  T

of October, 2

  

o hereby cer
Texas, is a t
notice on th
ite, www.cit
 at all times
ined so post
. 

was removed 
me:    

rn to before m

  
ris County, T

ILITY IS WHE
LABLE.  REQ
MADE 48 HO
TARY’S OFFI

lishing a fe
Redemption 

gular Meetin
ber 23, 2014 
The followin

2014 at 5:00

 

rtify that the
true and cor

he bulletin bo
tyofhumble.c
.  Said Notic
ted continuo

from the of

me on this th

 
Texas

EELCHAIR AC
QUESTS FOR A

URS PRIOR T
ICE AT (281) 4

IN

e for the A
Machines. 

 

ng of the Cit
at 6:30 P.M

ng subjects w

 P.M. 

e above Noti
rrect copy of
oard at City 
com.  The A
ce and Agen

ously for at l

fficial postin
  by 

he  , day

 

 
 

CCESSIBLE A
ACCOMODA
TO THIS MEE
446-3061 OR F
NFORMATIO

Annual Licen

ty Council o
M. at the City
will be discu

ice of Meetin
f said Notice
Hall, 114 W

Agenda and N
nda were pos
least 72 hou

ng board at t
            

y of  

AND ACCESS
ATIONS OR IN
ETING.  PLEA
FAX (281) 446

ON. 

nse and Insp

of the City o
y Hall Counc
ussed, to wit:

ng of the Go
e and that I p

West Higgins
Notice are r
sted on Octo
urs proceedi

the Humble 
 

 

SIBLE PARKIN
NTERPRETIVE
ASE CONTACT
6-7843 FOR FU

pection of G

of Humble, T
cil Chamber
 See Agenda

overning Bo
posted a tru
s, Humble, T
readily acces
ober 20th, 20
ng the sched

City Hall o
 

, 2014. 

NG SPACES 
E SERVICES 
T THE CITY 
URTHER 

Game 

Texas 
r, 114 
a. 

ody of 
e and 
Texas 
ssible 
014 at 
duled 

on the 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

10-23-2014 

AGENDA ITEM #2 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

A – OCTOBER 9, 2014 MINUTES 

B – FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

C – CURRENT INVOICES 

D – QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT 

E – MONTHLY DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

F – CORRESPONDENCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

10-23-2014 

AGENDA ITEM #2A 

 

OCTOBER 9 MINUTES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Minutes 10-09-2014 

HUMBLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

OCTOBER 9, 2014 – 6:30 P.M. 
 

HELD AT CITY HALL, 114 WEST HIGGINS, HUMBLE, TEXAS 
 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
   § 
COUNTY OF HARRIS § 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor Donnie McMannes, Presiding 
    Mayor Pro Tem Merle Aaron 
    Council Member Andy Curry 
    Council Member Ray Calfee 
    Council Member Norman Funderburk 

Council Member Allan Steagall 
    City Manager Darrell Boeske 
    City Secretary Jason Stuebe 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Police Chief Gary Warman 
    Fire Chief Gary Outlaw 
    Public Works Director Barry Brock 
    Fire Marshal James Nykaza 
    Lt. Delbert Dawes 
 
VISITORS PRESENT:  John Rudloff 
    Doug Bradford 
              
    
Mayor Donnie McMannes called the regular meeting of the Humble City Council to order with a quorum 
present at 6:00 P.M.   

 
1. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

Mayor Pro Tem Aaron offered the invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
2. CONSENT AGENDA. 

2a.  Minutes – September 23 Public Hearing; September 25 Regular Meeting; September 30 Public 
 Hearing 
2b. Current Invoices 
2c. Monthly Department Reports 
2d. Correspondence 
 
Upon a motion made by Council Member Funderburk, the City Council voted six (6) for and none (0) 
opposed to approve the Consent Agenda.  



Minutes 10-09-2014 

 
3. ORDINANCE 14-745 LEVYING THE AD VALOREM TAXES FOR THE USE AND SUPPORT FO THE 

MUNICIPAL GOVERNMENT OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS FOR THE YEAR 2014 AT A RATE OF 
$0.20 PER ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100.00) VALUATION ON ALL TAXABLE PROPERTY WITHIN 
THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE AS OF JANUARY 1, 2014’ APPORTIONING THE 
TAX LEVY FOR THE SPECIFIC PURPOSES; AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

 
Upon a motion by Council Member Steagall, the City Council voted six (6) for and none (0) opposed 
to adopt Ordinance 14-745. 
 

4. APPROVAL OF THE SECOND AMENDMENT TO A WATER SUPPLY CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
HOUSTON, TEXAS AND THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS AND AUTHORIZATION TO PAY $43,680.00 AS 
PART OF THE WATER METER RELOCATION. 
 
City Manager Boeske stated that this was for the transfer of a water line from the City of Houston to 
the City of Humble.  Upon a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Aaron, the City Council voted six (6) for and 
none (0) opposed to approve the Amendment to the Water Supply Contract and the expenditure of 
$43,680.00. 
 

5. ACCEPTANCE AND APPROVAL OF BID 14-03 AND CONTRACT WITH MCKINNEY CONSTRUCTION, 
INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $684,240.00 FOR THE FIRST STREET WATER LINE REPLACEMENT PROJECT. 

 
 Upon a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Aaron, the City Council voted six (6) for and none (0) opposed to 

accept Bid 14-03 and approve a First Street Water Line Replacement Project contract with McKinney 
Construction, Inc. in the amount of $684,240.00. 
 

There being no further business before the City Council, Mayor McMannes adjourned the Regular 
Meeting of the City Council at 6:33 P.M. on Thursday, October 9, 2014.   

 
    
             

       D.G. McMannes 
       Mayor 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
       
 Jason Stuebe 
 City Secretary 



 

 

 

 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

10-23-2014 

AGENDA ITEM #2B 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Humble
Balance on Deposit, All Funds
For the Month of September 2014

General Fund:
Fiscal YTD 
Earnings

Balance as of 
9/30/2014

Cash 903.04$            7,958,934.51$         
Certificate of Deposit
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 90,502.51         15,734,395.74         
Cash - METRO 1,645.15           4,319,461.53           
CDs - METRO
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs - METRO 23,549.43         10,645,598.18         

Total 116,600.13       38,658,389.96         

Water & Sewer Operating Fund:
Cash -                    2,549,360.72           
Certificate of Deposit
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 29,106.85         4,092,070.50           

Total 29,106.85         6,641,431.22           

Photo Traffic Safety Fund:
Cash 334.96              1,407,126.84           
Brokerage CDs 1,983.56           499,410.00              

Total 2,318.52           1,906,536.84           

Hotel Tax Fund:
Cash -                    463,861.89              

Total -                    463,861.89              

Capital Projects Fund:
TexStar- Water Well Construction 25.87                4,153.20                  
Brokerage CDs- Water Well Construction 584.77              144,750.31              

Total 610.64              148,903.51              

Sewer Plant Construction Fund:
Cash -                    152,986.74              
Brokerage CDs 453.70              119,811.00              

Total 453.70              272,797.74              

Total All Funds:
Cash 2,883.15           16,851,732.23         
TexStar 25.87                4,153.20                  
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 146,180.82       31,236,035.73         
Total 149,089.84$    48,091,921.16$       



 

 

 

 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

10-09-2014 

AGENDA ITEM #2C 

 

CURRENT INVOICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECKS

Water & Sewer Special Red Light Special 

Date General Fund Operating Fund Revenue Camera Beautification Projects TOTAL

10/9/2014 43,680.00               43,680.00$               
10/10/2014 433,255.43              90,943.82                     364.69                   117.70                 300.00                 140,835.18             665,816.82$             
10/10/2014 13,738.55                2,063.11                       188.95                   15,990.61$               
10/15/2014 3,518.85$                3,518.85$                 
10/15/2014 6,214.50$                6,214.50$                 
10/16/2014 323.22$                   323.22$                    

457,050.55$           93,006.93$                 553.64$               117.70$             300.00$             184,515.18$          735,544.00$             



















 

 

 

 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

10-09-2014 

AGENDA ITEM #2D 

 

QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Balance      
as of 

07/01/2014
Purchases Sales

Change in 
Market Value

Dividends & 
Interest

Cash Activity
Balance      

as of 
9/30/2014

General Fund:

General Operating Fund:

Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 17,745,150.16$  3,745,680.49$    (5,750,591.09)$   (12,428.03)$        34,016.44$         (27,432.23)$        15,734,395.74$  
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs - METRO 9,799,385.82      1,996,865.28      (1,150,000.00)     (652.92)              16,223.39           (16,223.39)          10,645,598.18    

-                     
Total 27,544,535.98    5,742,545.77      (6,900,591.09)     (13,080.95)          50,239.83           (43,655.62)          26,379,993.92    

-                     

Photo Traffic Safety Fund: -                     

Brokerage CDs 499,395.25         -                     -                     14.75                  -                     -                     499,410.00         

Total 499,395.25         -                     -                     14.75                  -                     -                     499,410.00         

Capital Projects Fund:

TexStar- Water Well Construction 4,153.07             -                     -                     -                     0.13                    -                     4,153.20             
Brokerage CDs- Water Well Construction 144,754.37         -                     -                     (4.06)                  584.77                (584.77)              144,750.31         

Total 148,907.44         -                     -                     (4.06)                  584.90                (584.77)              148,903.51         

Total General Fund:

TexStar 4,153.07             -                     -                     -                     0.13                    -                     4,153.20             
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 28,188,685.60    5,742,545.77      (6,900,591.09)     (13,070.26)          50,824.60           (44,240.39)          27,024,154.23    
Total 28,192,838.67$ 5,742,545.77$   (6,900,591.09)$  (13,070.26)$       50,824.73$        (44,240.39)$       27,028,307.43$ 

Note:  The quarterly report is in full compliance with the investment
strategy as established in the City's Investment Policy and the 
Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code.

City of Humble - General Fund
Summary of Investment Portfolio Activity

For Third Quarter
07/01/2014 - 09/30/2014



Balance     
as of 

07/01/2014
Purchases Sales

Change in 
Market Value

Dividends & 
Interest

Cash Activity
Balance     

as of 
9/30/2014

Enterprise Fund:

Water & Sewer Operating Fund:   

Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 3,659,939.13$  692,800.89$       (250,000.00)$      (6,451.53)$         10,405.88$         (14,623.87)$        4,092,070.50$  

Sewer Plant Construction Fund:

Brokerage CDs 119,812.80       -                     -                     (1.80)                  226.85                (226.85)              119,811.00      

Total Enterprise Fund:

Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 3,779,751.93$  692,800.89$       (250,000.00)$      (6,453.33)$         10,632.73$         (14,850.72)$        4,211,881.50$  

Note:  The quarterly report is in full compliance with the investment
strategy as established in the City's Investment Policy and the 
Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code.

City of Humble - Enterprise Fund
Summary of Investment Portfolio Activity

For Third Quarter
07/01/2014 - 09/30/2014



 

 

 

 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

10-23-2014 

AGENDA ITEM #2E 

 

MONTHLY DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 











































jstuebe
Typewritten Text

jstuebe
Typewritten Text

jstuebe
Typewritten Text

jstuebe
Typewritten Text

jstuebe
Typewritten Text

jstuebe
Typewritten Text

jstuebe
Typewritten Text

jstuebe
Typewritten Text

jstuebe
Typewritten Text

jstuebe
Typewritten Text

jstuebe
Typewritten Text

jstuebe
Typewritten Text

jstuebe
Typewritten Text

jstuebe
Typewritten Text
XXXXXX

jstuebe
Typewritten Text
XXXXXX

jstuebe
Typewritten Text
XXXXXX

jstuebe
Typewritten Text
XXXXXX

jstuebe
Typewritten Text
XXXXXX

jstuebe
Typewritten Text

jstuebe
Typewritten Text

jstuebe
Sticky Note
Accepted set by jstuebe



 

 

 

 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

10-23-2014 

AGENDA ITEM #2F 

 

CORRESPONDENCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

 

 

October 17, 2014 

Number 37 
 

Voter ID Law Back in Play 
  

The last edition of the Legislative Update reported that a United States district judge in Corpus 

Christi struck down the Texas voter ID law.   The law, which was in effect until the judge issued 

her 147-page opinion, has been the subject of continuing legal challenges. 

 

The Texas attorney general quickly moved to appeal the decision.  Last Tuesday, the Fifth 

Circuit Court of Appeals “stayed” the district court’s opinion.  The opinion cites the possibility 

of voter confusion by making the change so close the November elections.  The stay means that 

the law, which requires a voter to present photo identification at the polling place, remains in 

effect. 

 

It is likely that the latest opinion will be appealed to the U.S. Supreme Court.  League staff will 

monitor and report on the case as it develops.  Texas cities preparing for November elections 

should consult with their city attorney about the latest opinion immediately.   

 

 

Single Sticker Vehicle Registration and Inspection Program 

Could Affect City Vehicles 
 

The single sticker vehicle registration and inspection program, also known as “Two Steps, One 

Sticker,” was adopted by the Texas legislature in 2013.  It will go into effect on March 1, 2015. 

As the name suggests, the program will streamline the vehicle inspection and registration process 

so that Texas drivers only need to display one sticker on their car windshields to demonstrate 

proof of vehicle inspection and registration.  

 

The new program may have an impact on city vehicles and fleets. Under the current and 

outgoing system, most city vehicles must be inspected annually but are generally exempt from 

annual registration requirements. Under the new single sticker system, city vehicles will continue 

to be exempt from registration fees, but cities will need to renew registrations after an annual 

http://sblog.s3.amazonaws.com/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/5th-CA-ruling-on-voting-rights-10-14-14.pdf


2 
 

inspection like all other non-exempt vehicles in order to receive the combined inspection and 

registration sticker. 

 

The Texas Department of Motor Vehicles has scheduled webinars designed to educate state and 

local government officials about the impact of the new program on government-owned vehicles, 

and to give participants the opportunity to ask questions about its implementation:   

 

 Tuesday, October 28, 2014, 9:00 - 10:30 a.m. session: 

https://www4.gotomeeting.com/register/713208535 

 Tuesday, October 28, 2014, 1:00 - 2:30 p.m. session: 

https://www4.gotomeeting.com/register/781932559 

 Thursday, October 30, 2014, 9:00 - 10:30 a.m. session: 

https://www4.gotomeeting.com/register/804987055 

 Thursday, October 30, 2014, 1:00 - 2:30 p.m. session: 

https://www4.gotomeeting.com/register/775868495 

 

More information about the single sticker program is available at: 

http://txdmv.gov/motorists/register-your-vehicle/two-steps-one-sticker  

 

 

Pension Review Board Continues to Implement 

House Bill 13 Training Requirements 
 

The Pension Review Board, pursuant to H.B. 13 from the 2013 session, recently proposed new 

reporting requirement rules for public retirement systems’ pension administrators and trustees.  

The Board recently adopted rules that require seven hours of training in the first year an 

individual holds the position and four hours each year thereafter.  The proposed reporting 

requirement rules would require each public retirement system to inform the Board twice a year 

about its compliance with the training requirement. The Pension Review Board has additional 

information about these new training requirements on its website 

at:  http://www.prb.state.tx.us/resource-center/trustees-administrators/educational-training-

program/.  Contact the State Pension Review Board at 512-463-1736 with questions. 

 

Cities are Partners with State 
 

Texas cities are partners with the state to keep Texas’ economy and quality of life vibrant.  This 

simple one-page (two-sided) document allows city officials to communicate that message to 

legislators. 

 

       

 

 

TML member cities may use the material herein for any purpose. No other 

person or entity may reproduce, duplicate, or distribute any part of this 

document without the written authorization of the Texas Municipal 

League. 

https://www4.gotomeeting.com/register/713208535
https://www4.gotomeeting.com/register/781932559
https://www4.gotomeeting.com/register/804987055
https://www4.gotomeeting.com/register/775868495
http://txdmv.gov/motorists/register-your-vehicle/two-steps-one-sticker
http://www.prb.state.tx.us/resource-center/trustees-administrators/educational-training-program/
http://www.prb.state.tx.us/resource-center/trustees-administrators/educational-training-program/
http://www.tml.org/p/TXCitiesWorkOnePager.pdf
http://www.tml.org/p/TXCitiesWorkOnePager.pdf


1 
 

 

 
October 10, 2014 

Number 36 
 
 
 

 

Federal Court Strikes Down Voter ID Law 
  
Last night, a United States district judge in Corpus Christi struck down the Texas voter ID law.   

The law, which was in effect until the judge issued her 147-page opinion, has been the subject of 
continuing legal challenges. 

 
An initial hurdle to enforcing the law was the “preclearance” requirement in the federal Voting 
Rights Act.  Preclearance, which was required for any law that affected voting, simply meant that 

the U.S. Department of Justice or a federal court had to approve the law as not having a racially 
discriminatory purpose.  While the Texas law was being reviewed, the preclearance requirement 

was struck down by the U.S. Supreme Court. That action allowed the law to go into effect. 
 
The separate Corpus Christi lawsuit had been pending for some time.  After hearings and 

evidence, the court concluded that the law: (1) creates an unconstitutional burden on the right to 
vote; (2) has an impermissible discriminatory effect against Hispanics and African-Americans; 

and (3) was imposed with an unconstitutional discriminatory purpose. The court further 
concluded that the law constitutes an unconstitutional poll tax.  Those conclusions were based on 
both provisions of the Voting Rights Act that remain in effect after the preclearance requirement 

was struck down and the U.S. Constitution. 
 

Section 2 of the Voting Rights Act prohibits a state from imposing a voting qualification, 
prerequisite to voting, or standard, practice, or procedure that “results in a denial or abridgment 
of the right of any citizen of the United States to vote on account of race, color, or language 

minority status.”  The court concluded that the law violates this provision because, “based on the 
totality of the circumstances, it is shown that the political processes leading to nomination or 

election in the State or political subdivision are not equally open to participation by members of 
a [protected class] in that its members have less opportunity than other members of the electorate 
to participate in the political process and to elect representatives of their choice.” In other words, 



2 
 

the court believes that the law does not disproportionately impact African-Americans and 
Hispanics by mere chance. Rather, it does so by its “interaction with the vestiges of past and 

current racial discrimination.” As such, the law violates the Voting Rights Act as well as the U.S. 
Constitution. 

 
In addition, the 24th Amendment provides that a citizen’s right to vote in a federal election may 
not be “denied or abridged by the United States or any State by reason of failure to pay any poll 

tax or other tax.” Pursuant to the Texas law, any individual wishing to vote in person must 
procure one of seven forms of approved photo ID if he or she currently lacks such identification. 
Individuals must pay an application fee in order to obtain any of the required forms of ID, except 
for the Election Identification Card (EIC). An EIC, issued by the Department of Public Safety, 
must be issued free of charge. But in order to receive an EIC, an applicant must provide one of 

several supporting documents, the cheapest of which is a birth certificate. If the applicant does 
not have a birth certificate, it must be purchased at a minimum fee of $2.00 in Texas.  Based on 

that information, the court concluded that the law imposes a poll tax. 
 
The court ultimately entered a permanent and final injunction against enforcement of the Texas 

voter ID law.  Under the injunction, “Texas shall return to enforcing the voter identification 
requirements for in-person voting in effect immediately prior to the enactment and 

implementation of [the law].” 
 
The Texas attorney general has already indicated he will appeal the court’s decision.  League 

staff will monitor and report on the case as it develops.  Texas cities preparing for November 
elections should consult with their city attorney about the decision immediately.  The text of the 

opinion is available at http://electionlawblog.org/wp-content/uploads/20141009-TXID-
Opinion.pdf.  
 

 

West Fertilizer Testimony Continues to Miss the Point 
  

Earlier this week, the House Committee on Homeland Security and Public Safety once again 
considered how to address the fertilizer plant explosion in the City of West.   Unfortunately, 
some state lawmakers and committee witnesses continue to approach the tragic fertilizer plant 

explosion from the perspective of increased emergency training for local government personnel 
and officials.  They do so in spite of testimony from the State Fire Marshal’s Office at a previous 

hearing that storing the fertilizer in flammable wooden bins was likely the root cause of the 
explosion.   
 

Statewide, 50 of 96 similar fertilizer facilities already use metal or concrete instead of wood.  
The facilities do so without any additional prodding from the state.  Industry representatives 

continue, however, to oppose a mandate to that effect for the remaining 46 businesses or any 
rules that are based on input from cities, counties, or anyone other than the fertilizer industry.    
 

Why won’t the legislature simply mandate non-flammable bins, at a cost of thousands of dollars, 
as opposed to potentially millions in cost for extra training for volunteer officials across the 

state?  Increased emergency training likely wouldn’t have prevented the explosion in West, 

http://electionlawblog.org/wp-content/uploads/20141009-TXID-Opinion.pdf
http://electionlawblog.org/wp-content/uploads/20141009-TXID-Opinion.pdf


3 
 

which caused additional millions of dollars in property damage.  Isn’t a few thousand dollars to 
prevent fertilizer explosions altogether a much better allocation of resources than millions on 

training and millions more in property loss? 
  

The answer isn’t difficult.  At the Texas Capitol, business interests often trump local government 
and taxpayer interests.  However, the chairman of the committee – Joe Pickett (D, El Paso) – 
appears to truly want increased standards for the fertilizer industry.  He asked each witness at the 

hearing what they needed to do their jobs more effectively.  Some county officials mentioned 
that state funding for voluntary training and equipment would help their emergency management 

responses.    
 
In response to the request for state financial assistance, one legislator chided the county official, 

stating that “I just want to hear that we [the county] want to partner with you [the state] to make 
this [emergency management] a priority and will you help us….not will you give us.”  The 

county official responded that his county has made emergency management a priority, that there 
are now two new emergency services districts in his county, and that he is sensitive to the rise in 
property taxes.  Because of those things, he believes the state should help with training costs.     

  
During the 2015 legislative session, legislation requiring cities to spend extra tax dollars to 

prepare for avoidable disasters caused by a few negligent actors will likely be filed.  The city 
response to such legislation should be this:  let’s instead make the 46 wooden-bin facility owners 
move their fertilizer to metal or concrete, as a majority of their colleagues have already done.     

  
 

One More Time: 

Cities Shouldn’t Adopt Resolutions in Support of State 

Constitutional Amendments  
 
At the November 4, 2014, general election, Texas voters will be asked to approve or reject an 

amendment to the Texas Constitution to dedicate certain state oil and gas revenue to 
transportation (in lieu of the funds going to the state’s “Rainy Day Fund”).  The legislature 
passed the measure in 2013, and it will appear on the ballot as “Proposition 1.”  

 
Although many city officials are in favor of the proposition, a city council is prohibited by 

Election Code section 255.003 from adopting a resolution in support of it.  Doing so could 
subject city officials to criminal penalties and civil fines. 
 

Section 255.003 provides that “[a]n officer or employee of a political subdivision may not 
knowingly spend or authorize the spending of public funds for political advertising.” “Spending” 

of public funds is interpreted by the Texas Ethics Commission to include the use of political 
subdivision employees’ work time, the use of existing political subdivision equipment, and the 
use of facilities maintained by a political subdivision.  “Political advertising” is defined as a 

communication supporting or opposing a measure that “appears…in a…written communication.”  
 



4 
 

The Texas Ethics Commission has also indicated that, in certain situations, comments by city 
council members at a recorded public meeting that is broadcast over a public access channel 

could give rise to a violation of section 255.003.  According to Ethics Advisory Opinion No. 456 
(2004), “we can imagine a situation in which one or more city council members might arrange a 

discussion of a matter not pending before the city council with the hope that broadcasts of the 
discussion would influence the outcome of an election [and thus, rise to a violation of Section 
255.003].”  

 
At a minimum, the adoption of a resolution by a city council would require an employee to 

document the subject of and final vote on the resolution in the official minutes or recording of 
the meeting at which the resolution is considered. In this way the adoption of either an oral or 
written resolution would require a city employee’s work time and equipment and thus, 

constitutes a spending of public funds.  Moreover, such resolutions are often posted on a city’s 
website either as stand alone documents or as part of the minutes.  

 
While there appears to be no opinion or case directly on point, a written resolution in support of 
Prop 1 likely constitutes prohibited political advertising. The city officials who are responsible 

for adopting such a resolution could be committing a Class A misdemeanor. In addition, the 
Ethics Commission has authority to impose fines for violations of section 255.003.  Finally, the 

Ethics Commission has also indicated that action taken in violation of section 255.003 may 
constitute a violation of Penal Code section 39.02, which prohibits government resources from 
being used for campaign purposes.   

 
All of the above indicates that a city council is prohibited from adopting a resolution in support 

of Proposition 1.  That is why the League’s legal department advises cities against adopting one.  
Of course, nothing prohibits an elected official – on his or her own time and not using public 
funds – from advocating for or against passage.     

 
 

Local Officials Briefed on Ebola Threat 
 
Earlier this week, President Barack Obama, Secretary of Homeland Security Jeh Johnson, 
Secretary of Health and Human Services Sylvia Burwell, and Center for Disease Control and 

Prevention (CDC) officials conducted a conference call with state and local elected officials to 
update them on White House efforts to combat Ebola.   

 
During the call, President Obama made it clear that Ebola is a national security priority, and that 
White House officials are working diligently to stop the outbreak.  In an interconnected world, 

infectious disease can be spread across borders, but the chance of a large-scale outbreak in the 
United States remains extremely low.   

 
The President thanked Dallas Mayor Mike Rawlings and Dallas County Judge Clay Jenkins for 
working closely with CDC and the White House during the recent diagnosis and care of Ebola 

patient Thomas Duncan in Dallas, who passed away Wednesday morning.     
 



5 
 

CDC officials reiterated that Ebola is not an airborne disease.  Additionally, they stated that no 
additional cases or symptoms have been detected among 10 definite and 38 possible contacts of 

Thomas Duncan.  CDC and local officials will continue to monitor these individuals another two 
weeks until the end of the 21-day exposure period. 

 
All of the individuals on the call reiterated that the U.S. has the best doctors in the world.  
Federal officials are confident that – if federal, state, and local officials work together – 

operating with an appropriate sense of urgency will prevent an Ebola outbreak.  Local authorities 
in West Africa are screening passengers leaving airports in the infected countries, which includes 

taking passengers’ temperature.  Those officials have the authority to issue “do not board” orders 
if they suspect a passenger is potentially infected.  Beginning this weekend, U.S. officials will 
begin additional screening measures at the major U.S. airports that receive most West African 

visitors.  
   

Also earlier this week, Texas Health and Human Services Executive Director Dr. Kyle Janek 
testified before Texas legislative committees in both the House and Senate.  Dr. Janek testified 
that the people of Texas should be confident that the state is well-prepared to control the Ebola 

threat.   
 

League Staff will continue to work with local, state, and federal officials to disseminate 
information on any new Ebola-related developments.   
 

 

EPA Listening Sessions: 

Low Interest Loans for Water Infrastructure 
 

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) is hosting a series of listening sessions on the 
Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act. The Act creates a five-year pilot program to 
provide low-interest loans and loan guarantees for large water and wastewater-related 

infrastructure projects of at least $20 million. Smaller projects serving fewer than 25,000 people 
will be eligible if the cost of the project surpasses $5 million.  

 
At the upcoming listening sessions, the EPA will give an overview of the Act, provide a 
summary of financial assistance options and terms, and detail the status of agency efforts to get 

the program up and running.  
 

Four sessions have been scheduled, including one in Dallas on October 30, 2014.  To register, go 
to 
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1vpB_mTgFO2GxNZTiyUXOsZiuNhPbFyCLIPkNMgkxt7A/v

iewform. 
 

 
 
 

 

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1vpB_mTgFO2GxNZTiyUXOsZiuNhPbFyCLIPkNMgkxt7A/viewform
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1vpB_mTgFO2GxNZTiyUXOsZiuNhPbFyCLIPkNMgkxt7A/viewform


6 
 

Share the Message:  

We’re Partners with State 
 

Texas cities are partners with the state to keep Texas’ economy and quality of life vibrant.  This 
simple one-page (two-sided) document allows city officials to communicate that message to 
legislators. 

 
During legislative visits or within their legislative correspondence, city officials should combine 

appropriate talking points from the front page with key supporting data from the back page to 
consistently make the following argument:  the city/state partnership can only work in the 
absence of unfunded mandates and risky financial caps.   

       

 
 
 
 

TML member cities may use the material herein for any purpose. No other 
person or entity may reproduce, duplicate, or distribute any part of this 

document without the written authorization of the Texas Municipal 
League. 

http://www.tml.org/p/TXCitiesWorkOnePager.pdf
http://www.tml.org/p/TXCitiesWorkOnePager.pdf


 

 

 

 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

10-23-2014 

AGENDA ITEM #3 

 

SPECIAL PRESENTATION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

10-23-2014 

AGENDA ITEM #4 

 

ORDINANCE 14-746 

TRANSIENT BUSINESS LICENCSE  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF HUMBLE 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 14-746 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, 

TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER 30, “PEDDLERS, SOLICITORS, 

TRANSIENT BUSINESSES AND HANDBILL DISTRIBUTORS,” 

ARTICLE III, “TRANSIENT RETAIL BUSINESSES,” SECTION 88, 

“FEE; TERM; REAPPLICATION UPON CHANGE IN FORMATION;” 

BY DELETING ALL OF SECTION 30-88 THEREOF AND 

SUBSTITUTING THEREFOR A NEW SECTION 30-88; AND 

PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

 

Section 1.  The Code of Ordinances of the City of Humble, Texas is hereby amended by 

deleting all of Section 30-88, thereof and substituting therefor a new Section 30-88, to read as 

follows: 

 

 Sec. 30-88. - Fee; term; reapplication upon change in information; suspension;  

  termination 

 

(1) A transient retail business license issued under this article shall require a fee as 

currently established or as hereafter adopted by resolution of the City Council from 

time to time for each issuance. 

 

(2) A transient retail business license shall be valid for one (1) year, provided that sales 

may not be conducted for longer than thirty (30) consecutive days or sixty (60) 

cumulative days. 

 

(3) Any change in the information required in the application shall require the re-issuance 

of the license by submitting a new application and fee. 

 

(4) A transient retail business license may be suspended if license holder or business has 

been charged with any offense committed in the City of Humble while engaged in the 

permitted business, upon a magistrate’s determination of probable cause in 

connection with such charges.   

 

(5) A transient retail business license may be terminated if the license holder or business 

is convicted of any offense committed in the City of Humble while engaged in the 

permitted business or if a final conviction occurs or is found to have existed at the 

time of application. 

  

 

Section 2. In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this ordinance or the  

  application of same to any person or circumstance shall for any reason be adjudged  

  invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect,  



 2 

  impair, or invalidate this ordinance as a whole or any part of provision hereof other  

  than the part declared to be invalid, unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of 

  Humble, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and every part of the same  

  notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or   

  unconstitutional, whether there be one or more parts. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this _______ day of ________________ 

2014. 

              

       Donald G. McMannes  

       Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

       

Jason Stuebe 

City Secretary 



 

 

 

 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

10-23-2014 

AGENDA ITEM #5 

 

ORDINANCE 14-747 

GAMING ROOMS 

 

 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 14-747 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, 

TEXAS, AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 

HUMBLE BY AMENDING CHAPTER 8 AMUSEMENTS AND 

ENTERTAINMENT BY ADDING A NEW ARTICLE V. REGULATION OF 

GAME ROOMS AND AMUSEMENT REDEMPTION MACHINES; 

REGULATING GAME ROOMS AND AMUSEMENT REDEMPTION 

MACHINES; REQUIRING CITY LICENSING OF GAME ROOMS; SETTING 

FORTH A PENALTY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERALBILITY AND 

CONTAINING OTHER PROVISIONS RELATED TO THE SUBJECT 

MATTER. 

 

WHEREAS,  the City Council of the City of Humble, Texas, (“City”) recognizes that 

unregulated operation of game rooms and amusement redemption machines contribute to 

inappropriate and illegal activities which may include gambling, fraud, truancy, disorderly 

conduct and use of controlled substances; and 

WHEREAS, the City is a home rule municipality that is duly authorized under the Texas 

Constitution, the laws of the state of Texas as well as pursuant to Sections 215.074, 215.075 and 

217.042 Texas Local Government Code to address the negative effects of game rooms and 

amusement redemption machines in the manner set forth below; and 

WHEREAS, Harris County is authorized to regulate game rooms pursuant to Subchapter 

E of Chapter 234 Texas Local Government Code and has adopted regulations pursuant to this 

statutory authorization; and 

WHEREAS, City recognizes and desires through adoption of this ordinance to 

complement these regulations adopted by Harris County and to further the City’s interest in 

protecting the health, safety and welfare of its citizens; and   

 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined and does hereby now declare that the 

adoption of this ordinance is necessary to the health, safety and general welfare of the inhabitants 

of the City and to persons frequenting game rooms and using amusement redemption machines 

within the City, now therefore 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That the facts and recitations set forth in the preamble of this ordinance are hereby 

declared true and correct. 



Section 2.  That the Code of Ordinances of the City of Humble, Texas, is hereby amended by 

adding a new Article V Regulation of Game Rooms and Amusement Redemption Machines of 

Chapter 8 Amusement and Entertainments to provide as follows: 

 

“CHAPTER 8.  AMUSEMENT AND ENTERTAINMENTS 

 

. . . .  

 Article V.  Regulation of Game Rooms and Amusement redemption Machines. 
 

Sec. 8-200. Definitions. 

 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings 

ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 

 

Amusement redemption machine means: 

 

(1) A recreational machine that provides the user with an opportunity to receive something of 

value other than a right of replay and which complies with all applicable federal, state 

and local laws and regulations applicable to such machines. 

 

(2) A skill or pleasure coin-operated machine that is designed, made and adapted solely for 

bona fide amusement purposes, and that by operation of chance or a combination of skill 

and chance affords the user an opportunity to receive exclusively non-cash merchandise 

prizes, toys, novelties, or a representation of value redeemable for those items. 

 

(3) Any electronic, electromechanical or mechanical contrivance designed, made and 

adapted solely for bona fide amusement purposes if the contrivance rewards the player 

exclusively with non-cash merchandise, prizes, or novelties, or a representation of value 

redeemable for those items, that have a wholesale value available from a single play of 

the game or device of not more than ten times the amount charged to play the game or 

device once or $5.00, whichever amount is less. 

 

Amusement redemption machine game room or game room means any establishment, building, 

facility or other place where two or more amusement redemption machines, with the exception 

of excluded machines, are displayed or exhibited for public use.   

 

City official means a police officer, code enforcement officer or building official of the City. 

 

Excluded machine means: 

 

(1) A machine that awards the user non-cash merchandise prizes, toys or novelties solely and 

directly from the machine, including claw, crane, or similar machines;  

 

(2) A machine from which the opportunity to receive non-cash merchandise prizes, toys, or 

novelties, or a representation of value redeemable for those items, varies depending upon 

the user's ability to throw, roll, flip, toss, hit, or drop a ball or other physical object into 



the machine or a part thereof, including basketball, skeet ball, golf, bowling, pusher, or 

similar machines; or 

 

(3) A machine or any device defined in V.T.C.A., Penal Code § 47.01 as a gambling device, 

or any activity prohibited or described in V.T.C.A., Penal Code ch. 47. 

 

Game room owner or owner means a person who has an ownership interest of at least 25 percent 

in a game room. 

 

Licensee  means any person, individual, firm, company, association, or corporation operating an 

amusement redemption machine game room in the City. 

 

Operational machine  means an amusement redemption machine that is ready to be played and 

which is accessible to the public. 

 

Permittee means any person, individual, firm, company, association, or corporation maintaining, 

displaying for public patronage, or otherwise keeping for operation the public any gaming 

machine in the City. 

 

Residential Area means an area in which the principal land use is for one or more private 

residences including single family homes, duplexes and apartment complexes; or a subdivision 

for which a plat is recorded in the real property records of the county and that contains or is 

bounded by public streets or parts of public streets that are abutted by residential property 

occupying at least 75 percent of the front footage along the block face; or a subdivision for 

which a plat is recorded in the real property records of the county and a majority of the lots of 

which are subject to deed restrictions limiting the lots to residential use.   

 

Sec. 8-201. License required. 

 

      No person shall operate an amusement redemption machine game room in the City without 

first obtaining a license from the City, as required by this article. No license shall be issued until 

the occupation tax has been paid for each amusement redemption machine within the premises, 

and the applicable game room license fee has been paid. 

 

 

Sec. 8-202. Payment of annual inspection and license fee; issuance of license. 

 

        An owner, operator, or lessee of an amusement redemption machine game room shall be 

required to secure a license annually. An amusement redemption machine game room shall be 

required to secure a license by paying to the City an annual inspection and amusement 

redemption machine game room license fee as currently established or as hereafter adopted by 

resolution of the City Council from time to time. Upon payment of the fee and compliance with 

all licensing requirements, the license shall be issued by the City.   

 

Sec. 8-203. Term of license; jurisdiction; scope. 

 



A license issued for an amusement redemption machine game room under this article: 

 

(1) Is an annual license which expires December 31 of each year unless it is suspended or 

cancelled earlier; 

 

(2) Is effective for a single place of business only; 

 

(3) Vests no property right in the licensee except to maintain, display for public patronage, 

and permit the use or skill or pleasure of amusement redemption machines in accordance 

with the terms and conditions of this article; 

 

(4) Shall automatically expire if the licensee thereof sells the property or the business, 

transfers equity to accomplish same, or otherwise disposes of amusement redemption 

machines; and 

 

(5) Is not assignable or transferable. 

 

In addition, the City shall not refund any portion of a license fee after the license is issued, 

nor shall it prorate or reduce in amount any fee due to the City. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 

the initial license issued to an existing amusement redemption machine game room following the 

adoption of the ordinance from which this article is derived and the game room's compliance 

with the requirements of this article shall not expire until December 31, 2015. Thereafter, any 

such license shall expire as provided herein-above. 

 

Sec. 8-204. Restrictions, regulations, controls, and limitations. 

 

(a) All building and fire code standards must be met. Inspection by building officials and the 

issuance of a certificate of occupancy shall be obtained before a license for an amusement 

redemption machine game room is issued. 

 

(b) Only one amusement redemption machine game room shall be permitted on any lot or in 

any single building, structure or strip center except for amusement redemption machine 

game rooms in existence as of the date this ordinance goes in to effect and which do not 

meet this criteria; in which case full compliance with this subsection shall be required  

upon the expiration of three years or upon abandonment of use at such location, 

whichever occurs first.   

 

(c) No amusement redemption machine game room shall be situated within 1,000 feet of any 

church, school, daycare, hospital, public park or residential area except for amusement 

redemption machine game rooms in existence as of the date this ordinance goes in to 

effect and which do not meet this criteria; in which case full compliance with this 

subsection shall be required  upon the expiration of three years or upon abandonment of 

use at such location, whichever occurs first.   

 

(d)  The distance shall be measured in a straight line without regard to intervening objects or 

structures and from the nearest lot line of the amusement redemption machine game room 



seeking a license to the nearest lot line of the church, school, daycare, hospital, public 

park or residential area.   

 

(e) No amusement redemption machines or related business activities shall be allowed to be 

situated and/or performed outdoors. 

 

(f) The hours of operation for an amusement redemption machine game room shall be 

limited to the following hours: 

 

(1) Monday through Thursday, open at 8:00 a.m. and close at 11:00 p.m.; and 

 

(2) Friday through Sunday, open at 8:00 a.m. and close at 12:00 a.m.   

 

(g) One parking space shall be provided for each two amusement redemption machines 

within the amusement redemption machine game room, plus one additional parking space 

for each employee per shift. 

 

(h) The owner, operator, or manager of the licensed premises must be present to supervise 

the operation of the amusement redemption machine game room. The amusement 

redemption machine game room shall not be left unattended. 

 

(i) Amusement redemption machines must be situated within the licensed premises as to be 

in full and open public view, which entails being visible to all patrons of the 

establishment. 

 

(j) No person under the age of 18 years shall be permitted inside the building, structure, 

facility or space housing the amusement redemption machine game room. 

 

(k) A sign stating that no one under the age of 18 is allowed inside the amusement 

redemption machine game room shall be posted in plain sight immediately inside the 

entrance stating that: 

 

"No person under the age of 18 years shall be permitted inside the building, structure, 

facility or space housing the amusement redemption machine game room." 

 

(l) An amusement redemption machine game room operator must be a person who is at least 

18 years of age. 

 

(m) The total number of operational amusement redemption machines allowed in one 

amusement redemption machine game room establishment shall be limited to the 

maximum number of 50 amusement redemption machine games. Any back-up, non-

operational or replacement amusement redemption machines shall be secured in a locked 

storage area or closet to which the public is not allowed to enter and such machines shall 

not be connected to electricity or be otherwise operational. The occupation tax on such 

back-up or be replacement amusement redemption machine games shall be paid annually 

regardless of whether such machines are used by the game room's patrons. 



 

(n) Nothing contained herein shall be construed or have the effect to license, permit, 

authorize or legalize any machine, device, table, or gaming machine, the keeping, 

exhibition, operation, display or maintenance of which is illegal or in violation of any 

ordinance of the City, any regulation of the county, any section of the penal code of this 

state, or the constitution of this state. 

 

 

Sec. 8-205.  Application for amusement redemption machine game room license. 

 

An applicant for a license under the provisions of this article shall file with the City Secretary a 

written application on a form provided for that purpose by the City which shall be signed by the 

applicant, who shall be the owner of the amusement redemption machine game room sought to 

be licensed. A separate application must be filed for each location sought to be licensed. The 

following information is required in the application: 

 

(1) Name, address, telephone number, and driver's license number of the applicant if the 

applicant is a natural person; 

 

(2) Name, address, telephone number and driver's license number of all persons who own 25 

percent or more interest in the amusement redemption machine game room; 

 

(3) Name, address, telephone number and driver's license number of all corporate officers, if 

any, of such business; 

 

(4) Name, address, telephone number of the business; 

 

(5) If incorporated, the name of the business registered with the Texas Secretary of State; 

 

(6) If a partnership, the name, address, telephone number and driver's license of each of the 

general and limited partners; 

 

(7) The trade name by which the applicant does business and a true and correct copy of the 

registration of the applicant's assumed name filed in the office of the county clerk, 

bearing the file mark or stamp that evidences its filing in that office; 

 

(8) A copy of a valid game room permit issued by Harris County where applicable; 

 

(9) The street address of the premises; 

 

(10) If applicant is not the owner of the premises, the applicant shall furnish the name, 

address, and telephone number of the property owner; 

 

(11) Name, address, and telephone number of the operator of the premises to be 

permitted; 

 



(12) Number of amusement redemption machines in the premises to be permitted and 

the serial number of each amusement redemption machine; 

 

(13) Whether a previous license of the applicant, or, if applicable, a corporate officer 

of the applicant, has been revoked within two years of filing of the application; 

 

(14) The previous occupation(s) of the applicant and, if applicable, all corporate 

officers and partners of the applicant within the preceding five years; 

 

(15) A notarized statement, under oath, that: 

 

a. All the facts contained in the application are true and correct; 

 

b. The amusement redemption machines are not and will not be used as 

gambling devices; 

 

c. The location and operation of the amusement redemption machine game room 

will not violate any applicable deed restrictions; 

 

d. The amusement redemption machine game room will be operated in 

accordance with all laws; 

 

(16) Name, address, and telephone number of an emergency contact person who can 

be reached after hours; 

 

(17) A floor plan of the amusement redemption machine game room interior depicting 

the layout of the amusement redemption machine game room interior specifically 

including, but not limited to, the location of all amusement redemption machines, coin-

operated machines or devices, the manager's station(s), restroom facilities, kitchen and 

bar facilities, if any, and all areas to which patrons will not be permitted; and 

 

(18) Any other plans that may be required by this Code. 

 

Any failure to provide the documents required by this section shall be grounds for denial of the 

application to which it applies. 

 

Sec. 8-206. Renewal of amusement redemption machine game room license. 

 

(a) A license may be renewed for the following calendar year beginning October 1 of each 

year by filing a completed application for each license and paying the applicable fee set 

forth in this article. A renewal application shall be subject to the same requirements in 

this section as for a license application. 

 

(b) Upon the expiration of a license, the licensee shall be required to obtain a renewal of the 

expired license if the licensee wishes to continue operating an amusement redemption 

machine game room. Failure to obtain the renewal within 30 days after expiration may 



require such person to pay an additional late fee in an amount equal to 20 percent of the 

fee as currently established or as hereafter adopted by City Council from time to time. 

Nothing herein authorizes the licensee to operate after the expiration of a license and 

before a renewal is effective. 

 

Sec. 8-207. Grounds for denial of license; applicants or licensees indebted to City. 

 

(a) The City shall refuse to approve issuance or renewal of a permit or licensee for one or 

more of the following reasons: 

 

(1) Any failure to provide the information required by this article; 

 

(2) A determination by the City that inaccurate, erroneous or incomplete information has 

been submitted; 

 

(3) A false statement as to a material matter made in an application for a license; 

 

(4) Revocation of a license, pursuant to this article, of the applicant or a co-owner or a 

corporate officer of the applicant within two years preceding the filing of the 

application; 

 

(5) Refusal or failure to pay the occupation tax on any amusement redemption machine; 

 

(6) Refusal or failure to pay the correct license fee amount; 

 

(7) The applicant or a co-owner for such license has, within the past three years, been 

convicted of any violation of this article;  

 

(8) The applicant or a co-owner for such license has, within the past five years, been 

convicted of any violation of regulations adopted by Harris County relating to game 

rooms; and/or 

 

(9) The applicant or a co-owner for such license has, within the past ten years, been 

convicted of a crime involving moral turpitude. 

 

(b) The City shall not issue or renew a license under this article and shall suspend or cancel a 

license if it be determined that the applicant or licensee is indebted to the City for any fee, 

costs, penalties, or delinquent taxes. 

 

Sec. 8-208. Suspension or revocation of license for violation of article. 

 

(a) Power and authority. If any individual, company, corporation or association who owns, 

operates, exhibits, or displays any amusement redemption machine(s) in an amusement 

redemption machine game room in this City shall violate any provision of this article, the 

City shall have the power and authority to suspend or revoke the license(s) issued 

hereunder to any of the foregoing by giving written notice, stating the reason justifying 



such suspension or revocation, and the same shall be suspended or revoked ten days from 

date of such notice. 

 

(b) Suspension. The City Manager or his designee shall suspend a license for a period not to 

exceed 30 days if he determines that a licensee or an employee of a licensee has: 

 

(1) Violated or is not in compliance with any of the provisions of this article; 

 

(2) Refused to allow or interfered with an inspection of the amusement redemption 

machine game room premises; or 

 

(3) Demonstrated an inability to operate or manage an amusement redemption machine 

game room in a peaceful and law-abiding manner thus necessitating action by law 

enforcement officers. 

 

(c) Revocation for continuing violations. The City Manager or his designee shall revoke a 

license if a cause of suspension occurs and the license has been previously suspended 

within the preceding twelve months. 

 

(d) Automatic revocation. The City Manager or his designee shall revoke a license if he 

determines that: 

 

(1) A licensee gave false or misleading information in the material submitted to the City 

during the application process; 

 

(2) A licensee or an employee of a licensee knowingly allowed the possession, use, or 

sale of a controlled substance on the premises; or 

 

(3) A licensee or an employee of a licensee knowingly operated the amusement 

redemption machine game room during a period of time when the licensee's permit 

was suspended. 

 

(e) Effect of revocation. No license shall be issued within a period of one-year to anyone 

whose license has been revoked, except at the discretion of the City Manager or his 

designee. If the license of an individual, company, corporation, or association owning, 

operating, or displaying amusement redemption machines in this City is cancelled, such 

individual, company, corporation or association shall not operate, display or permit to be 

operated or displayed such amusement redemption machines in any amusement 

redemption machine game room until a new license is granted. 

 

Sec. 8-209. Appeal from denial, suspension or revocation of license. 

 

       If the City manager or his designee refuses to approve the issuance of a license or the 

renewal of a license to an applicant, or suspends or revokes a license issued under this article, 

this action is final unless the applicant or licensee, within ten days after the receipt of written 

notice of the action, files a written appeal with the City Secretary, who shall, within ten days 



after the appeal is filed forward same to City Council for its consideration at a public meeting 

following a hearing. The City council shall, within 30 days, grant such hearing to consider the 

action. The City Council has authority to sustain, reverse, or modify the action appealed. The 

decision of the City Council is final.  

 

Sec. 8-210. Display of license. 

 

A valid license issued under this article for an amusement redemption machine game room shall 

be displayed at or near the entrance of the business premises, and such display shall be 

permanent and conspicuous. 

 

Sec. 8-211. Inspections. 

 

(a) The premises in which such amusement redemption machines are located shall conform 

to all building codes and fire prevention codes of the City and the Fire Marshal of the 

City and his assistants and the chief building official may enter into the premises where 

such amusement redemption machines are located at any time during normal business 

hours for the purposes of inspecting said premises for fire hazards. 

 

(b) All law enforcement personnel of the City shall have the right to enter into said premises 

at any time during normal business hours for the purpose of enforcement of the terms of 

this article.  

 

(c) The City shall have the authority to seal any coin-operated machine located in any 

amusement redemption machine game room for which the occupation tax has not been 

paid. A fee in the amount identified by resolution of the City Council from time to time 

will be charged for the release of any machine sealed for non-payment of said occupation 

tax. 

 

(d) The City shall have the authority to seal any coin-operated machine located in any 

amusement redemption machine game room for which a license fee has not been paid. A 

fee in the amount identified by resolution of the City Council from time to time will be 

charged for the release of any machine sealed for non-payment of said license fee. 

 

Sec. 8-212. Responsibility of licensee. 

 

A licensee hereunder shall not permit any of the following activities within the licensed 

premises: 

 

(1) The operation of any amusement redemption machine by a person younger than 18 years 

of age; 

 

(2) Gambling by any person; 

 

(3) The possession of gambling materials; and 

 



(4) Unlawful or criminal activity of any kind. 

 

Sec. 8-213. Parking facilities. 

 

Any person who desires a license for the operation of two or more amusement redemption 

machines in one specific location shall be required to provide sufficient off-street parking to 

accommodate the vehicles of the patrons as provided ok herein. Such parking area shall be 

maintained in a safe, clean manner and shall not interfere with safe and expeditious movement of 

other vehicular or pedestrian traffic. 

 

Sec. 8-214. Violations of existing laws not authorized. 

 

Nothing herein shall be construed or have the effect to license, permit, authorize or legalize any 

machine, device, table, or gaming machine, the keeping, exhibition, operation, display or 

maintenance of which is illegal or in violation of any ordinance of the City, any regulation of 

Harris county, any section of the penal code of this state, or the constitution of this state.” 

 

 

Section 3 – Severability Clause.  In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence, or part of 

this Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstance shall for any reason 

be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not 

affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part of the same notwithstanding 

the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, whether there be 

one or more parts. 

 

Section 4 – Penalty.  Any person who shall willfully, intentionally, or with criminal negligence 

violate any provision of this Ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon 

conviction shall be fined in accordance with Section 1-11 of The City Code.  Each day of 

violation shall constitute a separate offense. 

 

 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this _______ day of ________________ 2014. 

 

        

              

       Donald G. McMannes  

       Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

       

Jason Stuebe 

City Secretary 

  



 
 
 

COUNCIL MEETING 
10-23-2014 

AGENDA ITEM #6 
 

RESOLUTION 14-739 
GAMING ROOMS LICENSE FEE 

 



CITY OF HUMBLE 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-739 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS, ESTABLISHING A FEE 

FOR THE ANNUAL LICENSE AND INSPECTION OF GAME ROOMS AND 

AMUSEMENT REDEMPTION MACHINES. 

 

WHEREAS, City of Humble Ordinance 14-747 adopted on October 23, 2014 created a  

  license for the operation of amusement redemption machine game rooms in the  

  City; and 

 

WHEREAS, said Ordinance authorized the establishment of a fee for the annual inspection  

  and amusement redemption machine game room license by resolution of the City 

  Council; Now therefore 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE TEXAS: 

 

Section 1:  The annual fee for the inspection and amusement redemption machine game room 

license is $300.00. 

 

Section 2: The annual renewal fee for the inspection and amusement redemption machine 

game room license is $300.00 

 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this the 23
rd

 day of October 2014. 

 

       

      APPROVED: 

 

 

            

      D.G. McMannes 

      Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Jason Stuebe 

City Secretary 




